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VILLAGE OF M’
Mundelem

Incorporated in 1909

November 6, 2015

To the President and Board of Trustees, the Citizens of
the Village of Mundelein, and all interested parties:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Village of Mundelein, lllinois for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2015 is hereby submitted. The purpose of this report is to provide citizens, investors,
grantor agencies and any interested parties with reliable financial information about the Village. The
report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepting accounting principles (GAAP) and with
standards prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the Government
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada. Responsibility for the accuracy of the data,
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including disclosures, rests with the Village of
Mundelein. The Village believes the report, and data contained herein, to be accurate in all material
respects and that it gives an accurate representation of the financial position and results of the Village
as of, and for the year ended, April 30, 2015. All disclosures regarding the Village's financial position
necessary to enable the reader to understand the Village's financial activities have been included.

Management of the Village is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls. These controls are designed to assure that the assets of the Village are safeguarded
against any material loss, theft or misuse. These controls assure that the financial statements are in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal account controls are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurances that control objectives will be met. The concept of
reasonable assurances recognized that (1) the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgment by Management.

The Village of Mundelein’s management discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the
independent auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic
financial statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction
with it.

For financial reporting purposes, this report includes all the funds of the Village of Mundelein. The
Village reports Police and Firefighters’ Pension funds as blended component units. Component units are
legally separate entities for which the Village is financially accountable. Other governmental entities,
which are located within the Village’s boundaries, are not included because they do not meet the criteria
for inclusion as set forth by generally accepted accounting principles.

300 Plaza Circle = Mundelein, lllinois 60060 = (847) 949-3200 = Fax (847) 949-0143 = Info@mundelein.org



Economic Outlook
The economic condition of the Village is gradually improving.

The economic condition of the Village of Mundelein is good considering the overall economic downturn.
This, combined with fund reserves, plus a moderate debt burden, a diversified tax base, and conservative
revenue forecasting have mitigated the impacts of the recession. Given the poor state of the general
economy, the Village Board has been concerned about raising property taxes, preferring instead to
reduce expenditures and use reserve funds to balance the budget. Economic growth remains slow. Sales
tax revenue appear to be recovering but at a very slow pace. The poor condition of the lllinois State
finances, particularly with regards to the State’s ability to make its shared revenue payments remains a
concern.

The Village worked with Weston Inc. to develop a site for the company’s regional headquarters and a
new Village Hall in downtown Mundelein. Construction of the new infrastructure and Village Hall began
in fiscal 2013 with completion in June 2014. A new 65-unit apartment building has broken ground in
downtown as well with completion in the summer of 2015.

Maijor Initiatives

In the summer of 2011, the Village adopted a Comprehensive Plan giving the Village Board and planning
staff a blueprint to guide future growth and development in both the private and public sectors. Also, a
new Zoning Ordinance was adopted in September 2012, a complete overhaul of the current ordinance.

The Village has continued its investment in the public infrastructure. Over S5 million in local road repairs
and related improvements to the water, sanitary and storm sewer systems in the adjacent rights-of-way
were spent in 2015.

During 2015, the Village was ranked as the 42" safest community in the country by NeighborhoodScout
for municipalities with a population of 25,000 or more, based on total number of crimes per 1,000

residents.

Long Term Financial Planning

The Village Board approves a Capital Improvement Plan in conjunction with the annual adoption of the
fiscal budget, which includes the projects anticipated during the next 5-year period. Projects are broken
out into the following categories and include both funding sources and uses: Street Improvements,
Transportation Improvements, Stormwater Improvements, Water System Improvements, Sanitary
Sewer System Improvements, Operations Improvements, Vehicle and Equipment Replacement and
Other. There is a total of $65 million of projects included for the 5-year period with funding sources
known of almost $40 million. The Long Term Planning process begins with the annual Board planning
session each fall and works through the budget process each spring.



Other Information

Independent Audit. State statute requires an annual audit by independent certified public accountants.
The firm of BKD LLP was selected by the Village to conduct the 2015 fiscal year audit. The Village did not
have grants in sufficient amounts to require compliance with the federal Single Audit Act and related
OMB Circular A-133. The auditors' opinion is included in the financial section of the report.

Award. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for fiscal year ending April 30, 2014. This was the nineteenth year that
the Village has made application for, and received, this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the Village published an easily readable, and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was
made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the finance department. Each member of
the department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report.

In closing, credit must be given to the President and Board of Trustees for their unfailing support for

maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the Village of Mundelein’s
Finances.

Sincerely,

JohAn A. Lobaito Doug Haywood

Village Administrator Finance Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Mayor

Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Mundelein, Illinois
Mundelein, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Village of Mundelein, Illinais, as of and for the year ended April 30, 2015, which collectively
comprise the Village' s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosuresin the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 1n making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’ s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’ sinternal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes eval uating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Praxity.:



The Honorable Mayor

Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Mundelein, Illinois
Page 2

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Mundelein, lllinois, as
of April 30, 2015, and the respective changesin financia position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

Asdisclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2015 the Village adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 67 Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an
Amendment of GASB Satement No. 25. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Americarequire that the
management’ s discussion and analysis, budgetary, pension and other post-employment benefit
information on pages 4-14 and 65-73 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considersiit to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statementsin an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’ s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financia statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financia statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village of Mundelein, Illinois' basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, and
statistical section listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not arequired part of the basic financial statements.



The Honorable Mayor

Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Mundelein, Illinois
Page 3

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, based on our audit,
the combining and individual fund statements and schedules for the year ended April 30, 2015,
arefairly stated, in al material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as awhole.

The introductory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financia statements and, accordingly, we
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

BED L

Oakbrook Terrace, Illinois
November 5, 2015



VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2015

The Village of Mundelein (the "Village") discussion and analysis is designed to (1) assist the reader in focusing on
significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Village's financial activity, (3) identify changes in the
Village's financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), (4) identify any material
deviations from the financial plan (the appropriation), and (5) identify individual fund issues or concerns as it refers to
the governmental activities’ net position.

Since the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's activities,
resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Transmittal Letter and the
Village's financial statements.

Financial Highlights

e The Village’s net position (see table 1) decreased by $2.9 million during the fiscal year ending April 30, 2015
(FYE15). The governmental net position decreased by $1.5 million from FYE14 and the business-type
activities net position decreased by $1.4 million from FYE14.

e The governmental activities revenues increased by $1.6 million and expenses increased by $2.6 million.
e The business—type activities revenues increased by $0.6 million and expenses increased by $0.4 million.
e The total expenses of all Village programs increased by $3.0 million.

USING THE FINANCIAL SECTION OF THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL REPORT

The financial statement's focus is on both the Village as a whole (government-wide) and on the major individual
funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden
a basis for comparison (year to year or government to government) and enhance the Village's accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (see pages 14-16) are designed to be corporate like in that all
governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns, which add to a total for the Primary
Government. The focus of the Statement of Net Position (the "Unrestricted Net Position") is designed to be similar
to bottom line results for the Village and its governmental and business-type activities. This statement combines
and consolidates governmental fund's current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital
assets and long term obligations using the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus.

The Statement of Activities (see page 16) is focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities
(including governmental, business-type), which are supported by the government's general taxes and other
resources. This is intended to summarize and simplify the user's analysis of the cost of various governmental services
and/or subsidy to various business-type activities.

The Governmental Activities reflect the Village's basic services, including police, fire, public works, engineering,
community development, and administration. Shared state sales, local sales and shared state income taxes finance
the majority of these services. The Business-type Activities reflect private sector type operations (Water and
Wastewater), where the fee for service typically covers all or most of the cost of operation, including depreciation.



VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements presentation more
familiar. The focus is on Major Funds, rather than (the previous model's) fund types.

The Governmental Major Fund (see pages 17-20) presentation is presented on a sources and uses of liquid resources
basis. This is the manner in which the financial plan (the appropriation) is typically developed. The flow and availability
of liquid resources is a clear and appropriate focus of any analysis of a government. Funds are established for various
purposes and the Fund Financial Statements allow the demonstration of sources and uses and/or appropriation
compliance associated therewith.

The Fund Financial Statements also allow the government to address its Fiduciary Fund (Police and Firefighter’s
Pensions, see pages 25-26). While this Fund represents trust responsibilities of the government, these assets are
restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the government. Therefore, these assets are
not presented as part of the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

While the Total column on the Business-type Fund Financial Statements (see pages 21-24) is the same as the
Business-type column at the Government-Wide Financial Statement, the Governmental Major Funds Total
column requires a reconciliation because of the different measurement focus (current financial resources versus
total economic resources) which is reflected on the page following each statement (see pages 18 and 20). The
flow of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and interfund transfers as other financial sources as well
as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as expenditures. The reconciliation will eliminate these
transactions and incorporate the capital assets and long-term obligation (bonds and others) into the Governmental
Activities column (in the Government-wide statements).

Infrastructure Assets

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure - roads, bridges, storm sewers, etc.) had not been
reported nor depreciated in governmental financial statements. GASB 34 requires that these assets be valued and
reported within the Governmental column of the Government-wide Statements. Additionally, the government
must elect to either (1) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful life or (2) develop a system of
asset management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. If the government
develops the asset management system (the modified approach), which periodically (at least every third year), by
category, measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the
government may record its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The Village has chosen to depreciate
assets over their useful life. If a road project is considered maintenance - a recurring cost that does not
extend the road's original useful life or expand its capacity - the cost of the project will be expensed. An "overlay"
of a road will be considered maintenance whereas a "rebuild" of a road will be capitalized.

Financial Analysis of the Village as a Whole

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the Village has presented a comparative analysis of Government-wide
information.



VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT
Statement of Net Position

The Village’s combined net position decreased by about $2.9 million from FYE14. The following analysis will look at
net position and net expenses of the governmental and business-type activities separately. The total net position for
the governmental activities decreased $1.5 million from $119.9 to $118.4 million. The total net position for business-
type activities decreased to $39.1 million.

Table 1 reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position compared to FYE14. Table 2 will focus on the changes in net
position of the governmental and business-type activities.

Table 1
Statement of Net Position
As of April 30, 2015

(In millions)
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current assets 42.6 47.1 7.7 8.9 50.3 56.0
Noncurrent assets 113.0 113.1 339 34.0 146.9 147.1
Total assets 155.6 160.2 41.6 42.9 197.2 203.1
Deferred Outflows 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2
Current liabilities 4.9 6.2 15 1.2 6.4 7.4
Long-Term liabilities 149 16.7 0.9 1.2 15.8 18.0
Total liabilities 19.8 22.8 2.4 2.4 22.2 254
Deferred Inflows 17.6 17.5 0.0 0.0 17.6 17.5
Net position:
Net Investment in
Capital Assets 97.2 95.7 32.7 325 129.9 128.2
Restricted 6.1 9.5 4.4 6.6 10.5 16.1
Unrestricted 15.1 14.7 2.0 14 17.1 16.1
Total net position 118.4 119.9 39.1 40.5 157.5 160.4

For more detailed information see the Statement of Net Position (page 14 -15).
Normal Impacts

There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Position
summary presentation.

Net Results of Activities - which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net position.

Borrowing for Capital - which will increase current assets and long-term debt.

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital - which will reduce current assets and increase capital assets. There is
a second impact, an increase in invested in capital assets and an increase in related net debt which will not change
the investment in capital assets.




VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital which will (a) reduce current assets and increase
capital assets and (b) will reduce unrestricted net position and increase investment in capital assets.

Principal Payment on Debt - which will (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and (b) reduce
unrestricted net position and increase investment in capital assets.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation which will reduce capital assets and investment in capital
assets.

Current Year Impacts

The Village's $2.9 million decrease in combined net position (which is the Village's bottom line) was the result of
governmental activities net position decreasing by $1.5 million. The governmental activities total assets and
deferred outflows decreased by $4.6 million and the governmental activities total liabilities and deferred inflows
decreased by $2.9 million. The change in total assets was the result of a decrease of $4.5 million in current and
other assets and a $0.1 million decrease in capital assets.

The business-type total assets decreased by $1.3 million and the business-type activities total liabilities remained
the same. Total assets changed as a result of significant capital improvements to the infrastructure of the
water/sewer system. Restricted net position for business-type activities can only be used to finance additions to,
expansion of, or replacement of capital assets.



VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The following chart shows the revenue and expenses of the governmental activities.

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2015

(in millions)
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services 3.6 3.4 8.0 7.7 11.6 11.1
Operating grants 1.4 13 0.0 0.0 1.4 1.3
Capital grants 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1
General revenues:
Property Taxes 12.3 11.9 0.0 0.0 12.3 11.9
Other Taxes 14.2 13.8 0.0 0.0 14.2 13.8
Other 0.9 0.3 0.0 (0.2) 0.9 0.1
Total revenues 324 30.8 8.1 7.5 40.5 383
Expenses
Governmental Activities
General Government 7.0 6.2 0.0 0.0 7.0 5.7
Public Safety 16.9 15.8 0.0 0.0 16.9 16.7
Public Works 9.4 8.6 0.0 0.0 9.4 8.2
Interest on Debt 0.6 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.7
Business Type
Waterworks and
Sewerage 0.0 0.0 9.5 9.1 9.5 9.1
Total expenses 339 31.3 9.5 9.1 43.4 40.4
Change in Net Position (1.5) (0.5) (1.4) (1.6) (2.9) (2.1)




VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Normal Impacts
There are eight basic impacts on revenues and expenses as reflected below.

Revenues:

Economic Condition which can reflect a declining, stable or growing economic environment and has a
substantial impact on state income, sales and home-rule sales tax revenue as well as public spending habits for
building permits, elective user fees and volumes of consumption.

Increase/Decrease in Village approved rates - while certain tax rates are set by statute, the Village Board has
significant authority to impose and periodically increase/decrease rates (water, wastewater, impact fee, building
fees, home rule sales tax, etc.)

Changing Patterns in Intergovernmental and Grant Revenue (both recurring and nonrecurring) - certain recurring
revenues (state shared revenues, etc.) may experience significant changes periodically while non-recurring (or
one-time) grants are less predictable and often distorting in their impact on year to year comparisons.

Market Impacts on Investment income - the Village's investment portfolio is managed using a longer average
maturity than most governments and the market condition may cause investment income to fluctuate more than
alternative shorter-term options.

Expenses:

Introduction of New Programs - within the functional expenditure categories (Public Safety, Public Works, General
Government, etc.) individual programs may be added or deleted to meet changing community needs.

Increase in Authorized Personnel - changes in service demand may cause the Village Board to increase/decrease
authorized staffing. Staffing costs (salary and related benefits) represent significant portions of the Village's operating
cost.

Salary Increases (annual adjustments and merit) - the ability to attract and retain human and intellectual resources
requires the Village to strive to approach a competitive salary range position in the marketplace.

Inflation while overall inflation appears to be reasonably modest; the Village is a major consumer of certain
commodities such as supplies, fuels and parts. Some functions may experience unusual commodity specific
increases.

Current Year Impacts
Governmental Activities
Revenue:
Total revenues increased $1.6 million from $30.8 million to $32.4 million.

The governmental activities general revenue includes property taxes, and other taxes (sales tax, home-rule sales tax,
hotel-motel tax, and state shared income tax). The Equalized Assessed Value (EAV) decreased 3% to $734,020,134.



VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS
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Expenses:
The Village’s Governmental Activities total expenses increased by $2.6 million from $31.3 to $33.9 million due to
expenses related to the move to the new Village Hall and increases in public safety pensions.

Business-type Activities
Revenues:
Total Business-type Activity revenues increased from $7.5 to $8.1 million due to a rate increase.

Expenses:
Total Business-type activity expenses increased to $9.5 million due to additional improvements to the system.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE'S FUNDS

Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015, the governmental funds reflect a combined fund balance of $22.5
million, which is a decrease of $2.7 million. The fund balance of the general fund decreased slightly from $14.2
million to $14.0 million in part due to a $0.5 million transfer out to establish the Archer Commons fund. The
fund balance of the Capital Development fund decreased by $0.7 million due to the completion of the construction
of the new Village Hall.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Village of Mundelein falls under the provisions of 65 ILCS 5/8-2-9 of the lllinois Statutes regarding annual
appropriations for municipalities of less than 500,000 inhabitants. The appropriation ordinance is the corporate
authority's authorization to expend sums of money deemed necessary to defray all necessary expenses and liabilities
of the municipality and is approved by the Village Board annually. As such, the figures presented in this report are
Village appropriations but for reporting purposes are titled budget. The appropriation ordinance is derived from and
expands upon an annual operating budget approved by the Village Board. The annual operating budget is the
internal document used by the Village to control day to day expenses of the Village and to plan for long-range capital
infrastructure improvements. The annual operating budget plus funds on-hand are included in the appropriation
totals. This Ordinance was primarily for the purpose of transferring appropriation amounts within a fund.
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VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

General Fund Budget Highlights

FY 2015
(in Millions)
General Fund Original Amended Actual
Budget Budget
Revenues and Transfers
Taxes 13.2 13.2 135
Other 10.8 10.8 12.2
Transfers 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total $24.0 $24.0 $25.7
Expenditures and Transfers
Expenditures 22.7 22.7 24.1
Transfers 1.2 1.2 17
Total $23.9 $23.9 $25.8
Change in Fund Balance $0.1 $0.1 -50.1

The General Fund actual revenues were $1.7 million more than the original budget. The Taxes category of revenues
was $0.3 million more than the original budget while the Other category of revenues was $1.4 more than the
original budget. Changes in state income taxes and local use taxes accounted for the majority of the difference.
Additionally fees, charges for services, and permits were higher than expected.

The General Fund actual expenditures were $1.9 million higher than the amended budget. Higher than expected

revenues led to increased spending for expanded services.
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VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Capital Assets

At the end of FYE15, the Village had invested $147 million net of depreciation in a variety of capital assets and
infrastructure, as reflected in the following schedule. See Notes to Financial Statement #5 for further detail.

Table 3

Capital Assets at Year End
Net of Depreciation
(In Millions)

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2015 2014 2005 | 2014 2015 2014
Land 49.5 49.5 1.9 1.9 51.4 51.4
Clp 0.9 11.9 0.1 0.1 1.0 12.0
Buildings 24.4 14.8 13.5 13.9 37.9 28.8
Land Improvements 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2
Machinery & Equipment 3.9 2.9 1.2 0.8 5.1 3.7
Sidewalks 4.9 5.0 0.0 0.0 4.9 5.0
Streets 18.3 17.6 0.0 0.0 18.3 17.6
Traffic Signals 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0
Storm Sewers 10.9 111 0.0 0.0 10.9 111
Water & Sanitary Sewer 0.0 0.0 17.3 17.2 17.3 17.2
Table 4
Change in Capital Assets
(in Millions)
Governmental Business — Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
Beginning Balance 1131 34.0 147.1
Additions
Depreciable 13.5 1.6 15.0
Non-depreciable 0.0 0.0 0.0
cip 0.1 0.0 0.1
Retirements
Depreciable 0.7 0.0 0.7
Non-depreciable 0.0 0.0 0.0
CIP 11.1 0.0 11.1
Depreciation 1.8 16 34
Ending balance 113.0 33.9 146.9
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VILLAGE OF MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Debt Outstanding

In 1998, the Village issued General Obligation Bonds as the first in a planned three issues to fund the construction of
a new fire station, new fire station headquarters and a new police station. In 1999, the Village issued General
Obligation Bonds, the second and last issue, relating to the new public safety facilities. The Village authorized the
refunding of the 1998 series bonds and the advanced refunding of the 1999 series bonds, which settled during FYE
2011. The 2010B General Obligation Bond issues has an outstanding balance of $5.5 million. In December 2013,
the Village issued $3.2 million in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013. The 2013 Bonds partially refunded
the 2005 Series Bonds. The Village of Mundelein’s Moody’s rating increased from AA2 to AA1 with the refunding
and advanced refunding issues. The Village currently owes $8.6 million on these two bonds.

In 1998, the Village received an lllinois Environmental Protection Agency $5.3 million loan under their revolving
loan program. As of April 30, 2015 the Village owes $1.2 million in principal. Since the loan was issued for the
acquisition of capital assets for the wastewater system, it is reported as a business-type activity.

In July 2010 the Village issued $7.1 million in Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010A. The proceeds of which
were used to acquire land in the Tax Increment Financing district. As of April 30, 2015, the Village owes $7.1 million
in principal.

The Village, under its home rule authority, does not have a legal debt limit. For additional information, refer to Note
#6.

Economic Factors

In January 2005, the Village Board created a 99-acre Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) and authorized Tax
Increment Financing for the core downtown area surrounding the commuter rail station.

The national unemployment rate-seasonally adjusted for April 2015 was 5.4%. As of April 2015, the Bureau of Labor
Statistics show the unemployment rate in lllinois at 6.0%, while the unemployment rate for April 2015 for the Lake
County Area was at 4.5%.

CONTACTING THE VILLAGE'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of
the Village's finances and to demonstrate the Village's accountability for the money it receives. Questions
concerning this report or requests for additional financial information should be directed to Doug Haywood, Finance
Director, Village of Mundelein, 300 Plaza Circle, Mundelein, Illinois 60060.

13
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Statement of Net Position

April 30, 2015

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current
Cash and investments 24,090,046 S 707,679 S 24,797,725
Restricted cash and investments - 4,978,321 4,978,321
Receivables
Property taxes 12,712,183 - 12,712,183
Accounts 271,896 1,553,396 1,825,292
Accrued interest 57,422 11,173 68,595
Inventories 14,213 - 14,213
Deposit - IRMA 1,822,462 296,680 2,119,142
Net pension asset 379,425 - 379,425
Prepaid items 366,250 115,628 481,878
Due from other governments 2,927,204 - 2,927,204
Total current assets 42,641,101 7,662,877 50,303,978
Noncurrent
Capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)
Land 49,493,214 1,876,764 51,369,978
Construction in progress 859,311 91,097 950,408
Buildings 24,414,223 13,513,189 37,927,412
Improvements other than buildings 175,591 17,250,408 17,425,999
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 3,942,878 1,152,468 5,095,346
Sidewalks 4,880,513 - 4,880,513
Streets, curbs and gutters 18,283,279 - 18,283,279
Traffic signals 9,682 - 9,682
Storm sewers 10,942,421 - 10,942,421
Net capital assets 113,001,112 33,883,926 146,885,038
Total assets 155,642,213 41,546,803 197,189,016
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Unamortized Loss on Refunding 181,268 - 181,268
Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources 155,823,481 41,546,803 197,370,284

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Statement of Net Position - Continued
April 30, 2015

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable S 766,663 S 847,861 S 1,614,524
Accrued payroll 1,142,862 141,958 1,284,820
Accrued interest payable 231,708 - 231,708
Refundable deposits - 112,918 112,918
Compensated absences payable 796,823 79,255 876,078
Other liabilities 185,000 - 185,000
General obligation bonds payable 1,785,705 - 1,785,705
IEPA loan payable - 319,556 319,556
Total current liabilities 4,908,761 1,501,548 6,410,309
Noncurrent
Compensated absences payable 617,759 78,103 695,862
IEPA loan payable - 840,180 840,180
Net other post-employment obligation 117,940 - 117,940
General obligation bonds payable, net 14,164,087 - 14,164,087
Total noncurrent liabilities 14,899,786 918,283 15,818,069
Total liabilities 19,808,547 2,419,831 22,228,378
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Property Tax Revenue 12,712,183 - 12,712,183
Deferred Grant Revenue 4,920,468 - 4,920,468
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 17,632,651 - 17,632,651
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 97,232,588 32,724,190 129,956,778
Restricted
Debt service 1,296,935 - 1,296,935
Capital improvements - 4,441,222 4,441,222
Public Works 3,392,766 - 3,392,766
Employee benefits 468,721 - 468,721
Public safety 943,951 - 943,951
Unrestricted 15,047,322 1,961,560 17,008,882
Total net position S 118,382,283 S 39,126,972 § 157,509,255

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Statement of Activities
Year Ended April 30, 2015

Program Revenues

Net (Expense), Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities
General government 6,990,256 S 2,683,237 S - S - S (4,307,019) S - S (4,307,019)
Public safety 16,872,966 S 904,717 - - (15,968,249) - (15,968,249)
Public works 9,390,090 - 1,364,838 - (8,025,252) - (8,025,252)
Interest expense 619,827 - - - (619,827) - (619,827)
Total governmental activities 33,873,139 3,587,954 1,364,838 - (28,920,347) - (28,920,347)
Business-type activities
Waterworks and sewerage 9,545,067 8,025,812 - 84,840 - (1,434,415) (1,434,415)
Total 43,418,206 $ 11,613,766 $ 1,364,838 $ 84,840 $  (28,920,347) $ (1,434,415) $  (30,354,762)

General revenues
Taxes
Property taxes
Home rule sales tax
Hotel occupancy tax
Road and bridge tax
911 surcharge tax
Telecommunications tax
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Sales tax
Income tax
Use tax
Replacement tax
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total general revenues

Change in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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12,286,672 - 12,286,672
3,628,775 - 3,628,775
323,075 - 323,075
156,075 - 156,075
278,194 - 278,194
983,645 - 983,645
39,007 - 39,007
4,920,878 - 4,920,878
3,042,240 - 3,042,240
640,703 - 640,703
168,393 - 168,393
490,400 61,909 552,309
487,169 - 487,169
27,445,226 61,909 27,507,135
(1,475,121) (1,372,506) (2,847,627)
119,857,404 40,499,478 160,356,882

$ 118,382,283 $ 39,126,972 $ 157,509,255




Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
April 30, 2015

Capital Capital Nonmajor Total
General Development Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments S 9,775,065 $ 403,522 S 4,920,784 S 8,990,675 S 24,090,046
Receivables
Property taxes 8,033,601 - - 4,678,582 12,712,183
Accounts 271,896 - - - 271,896
Accrued interest 49,737 554 - 7,131 57,422
Inventories 14,213 - - - 14,213
Due from other funds 448,120 - - 185,000 633,120
Due from other governments 2,830,725 - - 96,479 2,927,204
Deposit - IRMA 1,822,462 - - - 1,822,462
Prepaid items 366,250 - - - 366,250
Total assets S 23,612,069 S 404,076 S 4,920,784 S 13,957,867 S 42,894,796
Liabilities
Accounts payable S 375,974 S 85,624 S 312 S 304,753 S 766,663
Accrued payroll 964,022 - - 178,840 1,142,862
Due to other funds 185,000 - - 448,120 633,120
Other liabilities - - - 185,000 185,000
Total liabilities 1,524,996 85,624 312 1,116,713 2,727,645
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue 8,057,127 - 4,920,468 4,678,582 17,656,177
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 2,202,925 - - - 2,202,925
Restricted
Debt service - - - 1,528,643 1,528,643
Capital improvements - 318,452 4 - 318,456
Public Works - - - 4,929,623 4,929,623
Employee benefits - - - 468,721 468,721
Public safety 74,395 - - 907,065 981,460
Assigned for future purchases - - - 864,338 864,338
Unassigned 11,752,626 - - (535,818) 11,216,808
Total fund balances 14,029,946 318,452 4 8,162,572 22,510,974
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances S 23,612,069 S 404,076 S 4,920,784 S 13,957,867 S 42,894,796

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
April 30, 2015

Total fund balances-governmental funds S 22,510,974

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 113,001,112

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 23,526

The loss on refunding is recognized as incurred in the governmental funds,
but is amortized over the life of the new debt in the Statement
of Net Position. 181,268

The Net Pension Asset does not provide current resources, thus is not
recognized in the funds. 379,425

Some liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due
and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported

in the funds.
Accrued interest payable (231,708)
Net other post-employment obligation (117,940)
General obligation bonds payable (15,670,000)
Unamortized Premium on General Obligation Bonds Payable (279,792)
Compensated absences (1,414,582)
Net position of governmental activities S 118,382,283

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds
Year Ended April 30, 2015

Capital Capital Nonmajor Total
General Development Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Charges for services S 1,930,946 S - S - S 2,251 § 1,933,197
Licenses and permits 750,040 - - - 750,040
Intergovernmental motor fuel tax - - - 1,029,971 1,029,971
Grants 42,576 - 73,192 23,667 139,435
Donations 178,904 - - - 178,904
Fines and forfeits 725,813 - - - 725,813
Fees - 24,300 - 174,150 198,450
Property taxes 8,176,076 - - 4,110,596 12,286,672
Intergovernmental sales tax 4,629,642 - - 291,236 4,920,878
Home rule sales tax 3,337,539 - - 291,236 3,628,775
Hotel occupancy tax 323,075 - - - 323,075
Intergovernmental income tax 3,042,240 - - - 3,042,240
Use tax 640,703 - - - 640,703
Road and bridge tax - - - 156,075 156,075
911 surcharge tax - - - 278,194 278,194
Replacement tax - - - 168,393 168,393
Telecommunications tax 983,645 - - - 983,645
Other taxes 39,007 - - - 39,007
Investment income 387,727 2,323 - 100,350 490,400
Miscellaneous 487,169 - - - 487,169
Total revenues 25,675,102 26,623 73,192 6,626,119 32,401,036
Expenditures
Current
General government 5,268,283 - - 1,479,556 6,747,839
Public safety 15,113,845 - - 1,335,249 16,449,094
Public works 3,708,983 - 73,192 3,489,315 7,271,490
Pension Contributions - - - 1,841,960 1,841,960
Capital outlay - 703,896 - - 703,896
Debt service
Principal - - - 1,410,000 1,410,000
Interest and fiscal charges - - - 647,654 647,654
Total expenditures 24,091,111 703,896 73,192 10,203,734 35,071,933
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 1,583,991 (677,273) - (3,577,615) (2,670,897)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer in - - - 1,735,000 1,735,000
Transfer out (1,735,000) - - - (1,735,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,735,000) - - 1,735,000 -
Net change in fund balances (151,009) (677,273) - (1,842,615) (2,670,897)
Fund balances - beginning 14,180,955 995,725 4 10,005,187 25,181,871
Fund balances - ending S 14,029,946 S 318,452 § 4 S 8,162,572 S 22,510,974

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended April 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds S (2,670,897)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while
governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate
those expenditures over the lives of the assets.

Capital Outlay 2,403,167
Depreciation (2,495,700)
Loss on Disposal (7,276)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources,
while the repayment of debt consumes the current financial resources
of governmental funds. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
premiums and similar items when the debt is first issued,

whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the

Statement of Activities.

Principal retirement 1,410,000
Amortization of premium 40,705
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding (21,942)

Revenue in the Statement of Activities not providing current
financial resources are not repoted as revenues in the fund. (3,018)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These
activities consist of:

Decrease in net pension asset (190,366)
Decrease in other post-employment obligation 6,843
Decrease in accrued interest payable 9,064
Decrease in compensated absences 44,299
Change in net position of governmental activities $  (1,475121)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Net Position
April 30, 2015

Business-Type

Activities
Waterworks
and Sewerage
Fund
Assets
Current
Cash and investments S 707,679
Restricted cash and investments 4,978,321
Accounts receivable 1,553,396
Accrued interest receivable 11,173
IRMA Deposit 296,680
Prepaid expenses 115,628
7,662,877
Noncurrent
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 33,883,926
Total assets 41,546,803
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable 847,861
Accrued payroll 141,958
Deposits payable 112,918
Compensated absences 79,255
IEPA loan payable 319,556
Total current liabilities 1,501,548
Noncurrent
Compensated absences 78,103
IEPA loan payable 840,180
Total noncurrent liabilities 918,283
Total liabilities 2,419,831
Net Position
Net Investment in capital assets 32,724,190
Restricted for capital improvements 4,441,222
Unrestricted 1,961,560

Total net position

S 39,126,972

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Year Ended April 30, 2015

Business-Type

Activities
Waterworks
and Sewerage
Fund

Operating revenues

Charges for services

Water and sewer sales S 8,025,812

Operating expenses

(excluding depreciation) 7,918,424
Operating income before depreciation 107,388
Depreciation 1,586,380
Operating loss (1,478,992)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Investment income 61,909

Interest expense (40,263)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 21,646
Decrease in net position before capital contributions (1,457,346)
Capital contributions

Expansion fees 84,840
Change in net position (1,372,506)
Net position - beginning 40,499,478
Net position - ending S 39,126,972

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Proprietary Fund - Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended April 30, 2015

Business-Type

Activities
Waterworks
and Sewerage
Fund
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from residents for services 7,993,702
Payments to employees (2,655,963)
Payments to suppliers (4,986,001)
Net cash provided by operating activities 351,738
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Capital assets purchased (1,481,147)
Cash paid to residents from escrow deposits (1,900)
Cash received from residents for expansion fees 84,840
Principal paid on IEPA note payable (310,518)
Interest paid on IEPA note payable (40,263)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,748,988)
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash receipts from interest income 64,692
Net change in fair value of investments (97,956)
Net increase in investing activities (33,264)
Net decrease in cash and equivalents (1,430,514)
Cash and equivalents - beginning 3,586,583
Cash and equivalents - ending 2,156,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Proprietary Fund - Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Year Ended April 30, 2015

Business-Type

Activities
Waterworks
and Sewerage
Fund
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities
Operating loss S (1,478,992)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation 1,586,380
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (32,110)
Prepaid items (60,102)
Accounts payable 342,144
Accrued payroll 7,770
Compensated absences payable (13,352)
Total adjustments 1,830,730
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 351,738
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments
Unrestricted S 707,679
Restricted S 4,978,321
Total cash and investments S 5,686,000
Less Investments (3,529,931)
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,156,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Pension Trust Funds and Agency Funds - Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
April 30, 2015

Pension
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and equivalents S 100,556 $ 1,172,166
Investments
U.S. government and agency obligations 11,057,353 -
Municipal bonds 530,378 -
Corporate bonds 4,781,413 -
Money market funds 1,076,804 -
Mutual funds 15,023,104 -
Common Stock 8,146,944 -
40,716,552 1,172,166
Receivables
Accrued interest 74,654 -
Prepaids 21,777 ~
Total assets S 40,812,983 S 1,172,166
Liabilities
Deposits payable S - S 369,521
Other liabilities 9,078 802,645
Total liabilities 9,078 1,172,166
Net Position
Held in trust for pension benefits S 40,803,905 S -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Pension Trust Funds - Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year Ended April 30, 2015

Additions
Contributions
Employer
Participants

Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments
Investment income

Less investment expenses

Total additions
Deductions
Administration

Pension benefits and refunds
Total deductions

Change in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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S 1,811,080
670,010

2,481,090

1,359,841
1,186,135
(196,274)

2,349,702

4,830,792

56,807
2,368,415

2,425,222

2,405,570

38,398,335

$ 40,803,905




Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Village of Mundelein, lllinois (Village) was incorporated under a charter granted by the lllinois State
Legislature in 1909. The Village is a home rule municipality which operates under the management form
of municipal government as provided in Chapter 65, Article 5 of the lllinois Compiled Statutes. The
Village provides many services to residents including police and fire protection, water and sewer service,
planning and zoning and general administrative services.

The accounting policies of the Village of Mundelein, lllinois conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

(a) Financial Reporting Entity

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as
component units, which are legally separate organizations for which elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as:

(1) Appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board, and either a) the ability to
impose will by the primary government, or b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a
financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government; or

(2) Fiscal dependency on the primary government.

The Village’s sworn police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees Retirement System
(PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these employees and is governed by a five-member pension
board. Two members appointed by the Mayor, one elected pension beneficiary, and two elected active
police employees constitute the pension board. The participants are required to contribute a
percentage of salary as established by state statute and the Village is obligated to fund all remaining
PPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State of lllinois is authorized to establish benefit levels
and the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the
Village’s contribution levels. Although it is legally separate from the Village, the PPERS is reported as if it
were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to provide retirement benefits for the
Village's police employees. The PPERS is reported as a blended component unit (pension trust fund).

The Village’s sworn full-time firefighters participate in the Firefighters’ Pension Employees Retirement
System (FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of these employees and is governed by a five-member
pension board. Two members appointed by the Mayor, one elected pension beneficiary, and two
elected active firefighters constitute the pension board. The participants are required to contribute a
percentage of salary as established by state statute and the Village is obligated to fund all remaining
FPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State of lllinois is authorized to establish benefit levels
and the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the
Village’s contribution levels. Although it is legally separate from the Village, the FPERS is reported as if it
were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to provide retirement benefits for the
Village’s sworn full-time firefighters. The FPERS is reported as a blended component unit (pension trust
fund).
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements: The government-wide Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities report the overall financial activity of the Village. Eliminations have generally
been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities of the Village; however, interfund
services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. The financial activities of
the Village consist of governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, and business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for services.

The Statement of Net Position presents the Village’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities with the
difference reported in three categories:

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by outstanding balances for bonds and other debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net position results when constraints placed on net position use are either externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet the criteria of the two preceding
categories.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
(i.e. general government, public safety, etc.) are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs (including fines and fees), and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular program.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements: Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary (pension trust and agency) funds, even though the latter are excluded
from the government-wide financial statements. The fund financial statements provide information
about the Village’s funds. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds,
each displayed in a separate column. The Village has the following major governmental funds — the
General Fund, Capital Development Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund. All remaining governmental
funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor governmental funds. The Village has one major
enterprise fund — Waterworks and Sewerage Fund.

The Village administers the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — This is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The services which are
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(b) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

administered by the Village and accounted for in the general fund include general government, public
safety and public works.

Capital Development Fund — This capital projects fund accounts for revenues derived from development
fees from contractors for the purpose of meeting the costs of various Village projects and expenditures
at the Village's discretion.

Capital Projects Fund — This capital projects fund accounts for revenues derived from a state grant for
the purpose of meeting the costs of various Village expenditures near one intersection.

The Village administers the following major proprietary fund:

Waterworks and Sewerage Fund — This fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to
the residents of the Village. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this
fund, including but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt
service and billing and collection.

Additionally, the Village administers fiduciary (pension trust and agency) funds for assets held by the
Village in a fiduciary capacity on behalf of certain public safety employees and developers. The Village
reports two pension trust funds, the Police Pension Fund and Firefighters Pension Fund, which account
for resources accumulated for retirement annuities for sworn police officers and uniformed fire
department personnel. The Village reports the following agency funds; the Special Assessments Fund,
the Deposits Fund and the Reimbursement Escrow Fund. These funds hold various monies collected by
the Village from property owners and developers.

(c) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Agency funds
use the accrual basis of accounting but do not have a measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related
cash flow takes place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Village gives (or receives) value without
directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include various taxes, State shared revenues and
various State, Federal and local grants. On an accrual basis, revenues from taxes are recognized when
the Village has a legal claim to the resources. Grants, entitlements, State shared revenues and similar
items are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Village considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the current fiscal year (60 days
for property taxes).
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(c) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

Significant revenue sources which are susceptible to accrual include property taxes, other taxes, grants,
charges for services, and interest. All other revenue sources are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received.

Expenditures generally are recorded when the liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, compensated absences are recorded as a liability in governmental funds only when payment is
due (upon employee retirement or termination). General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Village’s proprietary fund types consider as cash
equivalents all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased.

(e) Investments
Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market prices.
(f)  Inventory and Prepaid Items

Inventories are accounted for at cost, using the last-in, first-out method. Inventories are accounted for
under the consumption method, whereby acquisitions are recorded in inventory accounts initially and
charged as expenditures when used.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items. Prepaids are accounted for on the consumption method.

(g) Capital Assets

Capital assets which include land, streets and bridges, buildings, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, water
mains and vehicles are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in
the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000, and an estimated useful life of greater than one
year. Additions or improvements that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or that significantly
increase the capacity of an asset, are capitalized. Expenditures for asset acquisitions and improvements
are stated as capital outlay expenditures in the governmental funds.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is reflected in the capitalized value of
the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(g) Capital Assets (continued)

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation of capital assets is recorded in the Statement of Activities with accumulated depreciation
recorded in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements and is provided on the
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Years

Buildings 50
Improvements other than buildings 20
Machinery and equipment 5
Vehicles 5-15
Streets, curbs and gutters 30
Sidewalks 50
Storm and sanitary sewers and water mains 75
Traffic signals 20

Gains or losses from sales or retirements of capital assets are included in the Statement of Activities.
(h) Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The government only has one
item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on refunding reported in the
government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference
in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. In addition to liabilities, the statement of
financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The government has two types of items that qualify for reporting in this
category. Accordingly, the items, unavailable property taxes and unavailable grant revenue, are
reported. The deferred grant revenue represents resources received in advance of the Village meeting
time requirements stipulated in the agreement.

Deferred

Inflows
Deferred property taxes $12,712,183
Deferred grant revenue 4,920,468

$17,632,651

31



Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(i)  Compensated Absences

It is the Village’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits upon employee retirement or termination. No governmental fund liability is recorded for
unpaid accumulated sick leave other than the portion of accumulating sick leave benefits that is
estimated will be taken as “terminal leave” at retirement. Vacation pay time is provided to employees
each January 1°t that must be used within the subsequent 15 months. Failure to use vacation time within
the stipulated period results in the employee forfeiting the unused portion of the vacation. A liability is
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations and retirements. The General and Waterworks and Sewerage Funds are typically used to
liquidate these liabilities.

(i) Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations, including compensated absences, are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities and proprietary fund Statement of Net Position.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as amounts from debt refunding transactions, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, during
the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures in the period incurred.

Debt service funds are specifically established to account for and service the long-term obligations for
the governmental funds debt. Enterprise funds individually account for and service the applicable debt
that benefits those funds. Long-term debt is recognized as a liability in a governmental fund when due,
or when resources have been accumulated for payment early in the following year.

(k)  Fund Equity

In the governmental fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund balance
for amounts that cannot be spent because they are either:

a. notin spendable form; or
b. legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance is reported when constraints placed on the use of resources are either:
a. externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments; or

b. imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance is reported for amounts that are constrained to a specific purpose by a
government itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority; for the Village, that can be
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(k)  Fund Equity (continued)

adoption of a resolution prior to the end of the year. Once adopted, the limitation remains in place until
a similar action is taken (adoption of another resolution) to remove or revise the limitation.

Assigned fund balances are amounts included in the Village’s Capital Improvement Plan approved by the
Village Board.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund.

When committed, assigned, and unassigned amounts are available for use, it is the Village’s policy to use
committed resources first, then assigned resources, then unassigned resources as they are needed.

()  Capital Contributions

Capital contributions (if any) reported in the governmental and proprietary funds represent capital
assets donated from outside parties, principally developers, and transfers of capital assets from
governmental funds to the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund.

(m) Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amount of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the period. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

(n) Interfund Transactions
The Village has the following types of transactions between funds:

Loans and advances — amounts provided with a requirement for repayment. Interfund loans are
reported as due from other funds in lender funds and due to other funds in borrower funds for short-
term borrowings and advances to other funds in lender funds and advances from other funds in
borrower funds for long-term borrowings. Net amounts between governmental and business-type
activities are reported as internal balances in the government-wide statement of net position, except for
amounts between similar activities, which have been eliminated.

Services provided and used — sales and purchases of goods and services between funds are recorded at
a price approximating their external exchange value. Interfund services provided and used are reported
as revenues in seller funds and expenditures or expenses in purchaser funds. Unpaid amounts are
reported as due to/from other funds in the fund balance sheets or fund statements of net position.
Amounts have generally been eliminated with the government-wide financial statements.

Reimbursements — repayments from the funds responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to

the funds that initially paid for them. Reimbursements are reported as expenditures in the reimbursing
fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(n) Interfund transactions (continued)

Transfers — flows of assets (such as cash or goods) without equivalent flows of assets in return and
without a requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing
uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the funds receiving transfers. In
proprietary funds, transfers in/out are reported as a separate category after non-operating revenues
and expenses.

(o) Implementation of New Accounting Standard

In 2015, the Police and Firefighters’ Pension Plans adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 67,
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, which has as its objective
improving the usefulness of pension information included in the general purpose external financial reports
of state and local governmental pension plans for making decisions and assessing accountability. Adoption
of GASB No. 67 had no effect on net position restricted for pension or on net increase (decrease) in net
position. It did, however, change the requirements for information disclosed in the footnotes to the
financial statements and information required to be presented as required supplementary information.

Note 2. Legal Compliance — Budgets

All departments of the Village submit requests for appropriation to the Village’s Administrator so that a
budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, function and activity, and includes
information on the past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations for the next fiscal
year. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue, debt service, capital
projects, enterprise and pension trust funds. The Archer Commons Fund was not budgeted because the
fund was created later in the fiscal year.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles except for the
Waterworks and Sewerage Fund. The Waterworks and Sewerage Fund is adopted on a modified basis
in that depreciation is not budgeted, and capital outlay and debt principal retirements are budgeted.

The proposed budget is presented to the governing body for review. The governing body holds public
hearings and may add to, subtract from or change appropriations, but may not change the form of the
budget. The administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any
fund; however, the governing body must approve any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any
fund. The budget may be amended by the governing body.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.

The following funds had an excess of expenditures over budget:

General Fund $1,874,361
Capital Development Fund $203,896
[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund $59,489
Social Security Fund $57,471
Motor Fuel Tax Fund $111,158
Equipment Replacement Fund $909,470
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Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 2. Legal Compliance — Budgets (continued)

Deficit Fund Balances — The Stormwater Management Fund had a deficit fund balance of $464,146 and
the Archer Commons Fund had a deficit of $71,672 as of the end of the fiscal year.

Note 3. Deposits and Investments

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except the
pension trust funds. Each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the combined statement of net
position as “cash and investments.” In addition, investments are separately held by several of the
Village's funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust funds are held separately from those
of other funds.

Statutes authorize the Village to make deposits/invest in commercial banks, obligations of the U.S.
Treasury and U.S. Agencies, obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares,
repurchase agreements (subject to limitations), commercial paper rated within the three highest
classifications by at least two standard rating services, and the lllinois Funds Investment Pool. Pension
funds may also invest in certain non-U.S. obligations, mortgages, veterans’ loans, life insurance company
contracts and certain equities (subject to limitations). The Village’s deposits and investments at April 30,
2015, are categorized to give an indication of the level of collateral risk assumed.

Restricted cash represents monies raised for a specific purpose that are legally restricted for spending on
an item (i.e., sewer expansion fees for future sanitary pipes).

(a)  Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Village’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The Village’s investment policy does not address custodial credit risk for deposits.
As of April 30, 2015, the Village’s carrying value of deposit accounts was $9,218,187 and the bank
balance totaled $10,237,013, which was insured or collateralized. As of April 30, 2015, the Police
Pension Fund’s carrying value of deposit accounts was $14,471 and the bank balance totaled $19,973.

Investments — For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Village will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The Village's investment policy does not address custodial
credit risk for investments. As of April 30, 2015, the Village was not exposed to custodial credit risk for
its investments.

(b) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The Village’s investment policy requires diversifying investments to avoid incurring
unreasonable risk.

As of April 30, 2015, the Village had the following investments subject to interest rate risk and their
maturities.
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Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 3. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less More

Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
U.S. Treasury securities S 27,003,648 S 8,108,557 $ 10,388,213 S 8,194,439 S 312,439
GNMA securities 44,127 - 1,440 - 42,687
U.S. Government agencies - other 2,011,631 176,033 477,260 531,010 827,328
Municipal bonds 530,378 70,189 305,377 10,536 144,276
Corporate bonds 4,781,413 365,154 2,277,566 1,850,417 288,276
Total S 34,371,197 S 8,719,933 $ 13,449,856 $ 10,586,402 S 1,615,006
Not Subject to Interest Rate Risk
Mutual Funds S 18,630,011
Common Stock 8,146,944
Illinois Funds Investment Pool* 144,442
Money market 1,139,512

S 28,060,909

* Weighted average maturity is less than one year.
(c) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
State law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top two ratings issued by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). It is the Village’s policy to limit its
investments in these investment types to the top rating issued by NRSROs. As of April 30, 2015, the
Village's debt securities were as follows:

Fair Standard
Investment Type Value & Poors
U.S. Treasuries S 27,003,648 AAA
U.S. Government agencies:
FHLMC 610,402 AA
FNMA 1,401,229 AA
GNMA 44,127 AA
Money market:
Delaware 246,319 AAA
Morgan Stanley 313,382 AAA
Madison 334,183 AAA
McDonnell 39,864 AAA
ING 62,708 AAA
Gannett 37,944 AAA
TCW 105,112 AAA
Municipal bonds 139,292 AAA
Municipal bonds 391,086 AA
Corporate bonds 559,563 AA
Corporate bonds 2,743,126 A
Corporate bonds 1,478,724 BBB
The Illinois Funds Investment Pool 144,442 AAA
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(d) Concentration of Credit Risk. The Village places no limit on the amount the Village may invest in any
one issuer, however, the Village did not have more than 5 percent of the Village’s investments with any
onhe issuer.

(e) Other Information. The lllinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the State of lllinois, Office of
the Treasurer, which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes.
Illinois Funds is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but does operate in a manner
consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in lllinois Funds are
valued at Illinois Funds’ share price, which is the price the investment could be sold for.

Note 4. Property Taxes

The Village annually establishes a legal right to the property tax assessments upon the enactment of a
tax levy ordinance by the Village Board. These tax assessments are levied in December and attach as an
enforceable lien on the previous January 1. Tax bills are prepared by the County and issued on or about
May and August, and are payable in two installments which are due on or about June 1 and September
1.

Property taxes are billed, collected and remitted periodically by the County Treasurer of Lake County,

Illinois. Since the 2014 property tax levy is levied to finance the operations of the fiscal year beginning
May 1, 2015, the 2014 property tax levy is deferred (unavailable) as of year-end.
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(a) Governmental Activities

A summary of changes in capital assets for governmental activities of the Village for the year ended April
30, 2015, is as follows:

Balance Deletions Balance
May 1 Additions and Transfers April 30
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 49,493,214 S - S - S 49,493,214
Construction in progress 11,910,387 66,855 11,117,931 859,311
61,403,601 66,855 11,117,931 50,352,525

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings 19,989,772 9,985,630 50,407 29,924,995
Land improvements 2,553,381 - - 2,553,381
Machinery and equipment 9,937,570 1,629,416 664,532 10,902,454
Sidewalks 7,671,246 - - 7,671,246
Streets, curbs and gutters 38,464,921 1,839,197 - 40,304,118
Traffic signals 310,488 - - 310,488
Storm sewers 15,514,272 - - 15,514,272

94,441,650 13,454,243 714,939 107,180,954

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 5,157,247 396,656 43,131 5,510,772
Land improvements 2,317,151 60,639 - 2,377,790
Machinery and equipment 7,063,950 560,158 664,532 6,959,576
Sidewalks 2,645,057 145,676 - 2,790,733
Streets, curbs and gutters 20,900,777 1,120,062 - 22,020,839
Traffic signals 288,209 12,597 - 300,806
Storm sewers 4,371,939 199,912 - 4,571,851

42,744,330 2,495,700 707,663 44,532,366

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 51,697,320 10,958,543 7,276 62,648,587

Governmental activities capital
assets, net S 113,100,921 $ 11,025,398 S 11,125,207 S 113,001,112
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(b) Business-Type Activities

A summary of changes in capital assets for business-type activities of the Village for the year ended April
30, 2015, is as follows:

Deletions
Balance and Balance
May 1 Additions Transfers April 30
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,876,764 S -8 - $ 1,876,764
Constructionin progress 124,881 14,603 48,387 91,097
2,001,645 14,603 48,387 1,967,861
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 20,829,738 - - 20,829,738
Improvements other than buildings
including Water/Sewer system 43,088,043 1,111,856 - 44,199,899
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 4,148,656 403,075 - 4,551,731
68,066,437 1,514,931 - 69,581,368
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 6,902,922 413,627 - 7,316,549
Improvements other than buildings
including Water/Sewer system 25,864,008 1,085,483 - 26,949,491
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 3,311,993 87,270 - 3,399,263
36,078,923 1,586,380 - 37,665,303
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 31,987,514 (71,449) - 31,916,065

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 33,989,159 S  (56,846) S 48,387 $ 33,883,926

(c) Depreciation Charged to Functions / Activities

Depreciation was charged to functions/activities as follows:
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
General government S 800 $ -
Public safety 611,772 -
Public works 1,883,128 1,586,380

S 2,495,700 S 1,586,380
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The Village issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities. In addition, lllinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) loans have been
utilized to finance major sewer improvement/construction projects.

(a) Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of long-term obligation activity for the Village associated with governmental
activities for the year ended April 30, 2015:

Balance Balance Due Within
May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30 One Year
Compensated absences S 1,458,881 S 817,053 S 861,352 S 1,414,582 S 796,823
OPEB obligations 124,784 - 6,844 117,940 -
General obligation bonds 17,080,000 - 1,410,000 15,670,000 1,745,000
Premium on bonds 320,497 - 40,705 279,792 40,705
Total S 18,984,162 S 817,053 $ 2,318,901 $ 17,482,314 S 2,582,528

The general fund is used to liquidate the OPEB obligations. Compensated balances are primarily funded
by the general fund.

(b) Business-Type Activities

The following is a summary of long-term obligation activity for the Village associated with business-type
activities for the year ended April 30, 2015:

Balance Balance Due Within

May 1 Issuances  Retirements April 30 One Year
Compensated absences S 170,710 S 92,607 S 105,959 S 157,358 S 79,255
IEPA loan payable 1,470,254 - 310,518 1,159,736 319,556
Total S 1,640,964 S 92,607 S 416,477 S 1,317,094 S 398,811
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(c) Changes in Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations outstanding of the Village are as follows:

Fund Debt Balance Balances
Issue Retired By May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30

General Obligation Bonds
General Obligation Bond Series

of 2005 due in annual installments

of $210,000 to $360,000 through Debt

December 1, 2025 plus interest at Service

3.5t04.2% Fund 235,000 - 235,000 -
General Obligation Bond Series

of 2010A due in annual installments

of $310,000 to $645,000 through

December 15, 2030 plus interest at TIF #2

3% to 6% Fund 7,100,000 - - 7,100,000
General Obligation Bond Series

of 2010B due in annual installments

of $625,000 to $1,175,000 through Debt

December 1, 2019 plus interest at Service

2% to 3.25% Fund 6,535,000 - 1,020,000 5,515,000
General Obligation Bond Series

of 2013 due in annual installments

of $155,000 to $480,000 through Debt

December 15, 2021 plus interest at Service

3% to 4% Fund 3,210,000 - 155,000 3,055,000
Total General Obligation Bonds S 17,080,000 $ - S 1,410,000 S 15,670,000
Notes Payable
IEPA Note payable due in annual

installments of $350,780 Waterworks

including interest at 2.89%, through and

October 1, 2018 Sewerage S 1,470,254 §$ - $ 310,518 S 1,159,736

41



Village of Mundelein, lllinois
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015

Note 6.  Long-Term Obligations (Continued)
(d) Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Fiscal General Obligation Bonds IEPA Note Payable
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 1,745,000 617,889 319,556 31,224
2017 1,790,000 573,339 328,858 21,923
2018 1,855,000 522,602 338,430 12,350
2019 1,915,000 465,302 172,892 2,498
2020 1,980,000 402,676 - -
2021-2025 3,020,000 1,346,022 - -
2026-2030 2,720,000 682,192 - -
2031 645,000 38,700 - -
Totals S 15,670,000 S 4,648,722 S 1,159,736 S 67,995

(e) Advance Refunding

In 2013, the government issued $3,210,000 in general obligation refunding bonds with interest rates
ranging from 2.0% to 4.0%. The proceeds were used to advance refund $3,245,000 of the outstanding
2005 general obligation bonds which had interest rates ranging from 4.25% to 5.25%. The defeased
bonds were retired with the escrow account funds during fiscal year 2015.

Note 7. Defined Benefit Pension Plans
(a) lllinois Municipal Retirement System

Plan Description

The Village’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and disability
benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Village
plan is affiliated with the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan.
Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the
State of lllinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

All employees hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be
enrolled in IMRF as participating members. IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees
hired prior to January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees, pension benefits
vest after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced benefits) or after
age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit,
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of
credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter.
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Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees,
pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating members who retire at age 62 (reduced
benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with ten years of credited service are entitled to an annual
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings,
for each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% each year thereafter.

Funding Policy

As set by statute, employer regular plan members are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their
annual covered salary. The statutes require employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition
to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer
contribution rate for calendar year 2014 was 14.10 percent of annual covered payroll and 13.56 percent
for calendar year 2015. The Village also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and
supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for
disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement
benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost

The Village's annual pension cost of $1,050,791 for the regular plan was equal to the Village’s required
and actual contributions.

Three-Year Trend information is as follows:

For Annual Percentage Net Pension
Fiscal Pension of APC Asset
Year Cost (APC) Contributed (Obligation)
2015 $ 1,050,791 100 % S -
2014 988,017 100 -
2013 925,592 100 -

The required contribution for 2015 was determined as part of the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation
using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2012
included (a) 7.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b)
projected salary increases of 4% a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases
ranging from 0.4% to 10% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d)
post-retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the Village’s regular plan assets
was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of
assets. The Village’s regular plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 2012 is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open 29 year basis.
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Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the regular plan was 70.21 percent
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $24,185,465 and the actuarial value of assets was
$16,979,457, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $7,206,008. The covered
payroll for calendar 2014 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $7,452,420 and
the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 96.70 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSl following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

(b) Police Pension

Plan Description and Provisions

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan, which is a defined benefit single-
employer pension plan. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and
employee and employer contribution levels are governed by lllinois Compiled Statutes (Chapter 40—
Article 5/3) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village accounts for the plan as a
pension trust fund. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

At April 30, 2015, the Police Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 34

Current employees

Vested 37
Nonvested 15
Total 86

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Tier 1
employees (those hired prior to January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years
of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of the salary
attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day, whichever is
greater. The pension shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for each additional year of service over 20
years up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75% of such salary. Employees with at least 8 years but less than
20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly
pension of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of service after July 1, 1993 shall be
increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age
of at least 55 years, by 3% of the pension payable including increases previously granted.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or older with 10 or
more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to the
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average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total salary of the police officer during the 96
consecutive months of service within the last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the
highest by the number of months of service in that period. Police officers’ salary for pension purposes is
capped at $106,800, plus the lesser of one-half of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index or 3%
compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for each additional year of
service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of such salary. Employees with at least 10
years may retire at age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., %% for each month under 55). The
monthly benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall be increased annually at age 60 on January 1st after the
police officer retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is later.
Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3% or
one-half of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the proceeding calendar year.

Surviving spouses receive 100% of final salary for fatalities resulting from an act of duty, or otherwise
the greater of 50% of final salary or the employee’s retirement benefit. Employees disabled in the line of
duty receive 65% of final salary. The monthly pension of a police officer who retired with 20 or more
years of service after January 1, 1977, is increased annually, following the first anniversary date of
retirement and will be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the amount of the
pension payable at the time of the increase.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police Pension Plan. If an
employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee
contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the
remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary.

Effective January 1, 2011, the Village’s contributions must accumulate to the point where 90% of the
past service cost for the Police Pension Plan is funded by the year 2040. Administrative expenses are
generally paid from plan assets.

Annual required contribution S 1,390,333
Interest on the Net Pension Asset (11,556)
Adjustment to the ARC 7,405
Annual pension cost 1,386,182
Contributions made 1,247,471
Decrease in net pension asset (138,711)
Net pension asset at May 1, 2014 165,082
Net pension asset at April 30, 2015 S 26,371

The net pension asset of $26,371 is also reported by the Village in the government-wide Statement of
Net Position at April 30, 2015.
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Three-Year Trend Information for the Police Pension Plan

For Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Pension of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) Contributed Asset
2013 S 1,163,765 93.8 % S 297,148
2014 1,214,464 89.7 165,082
2015 1,386,182 90.0 26,371

The Village’s Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) was $1,390,333 of which the Village contributed
$1,247,471 resulting in a contribution deficiency of $142,682. The Village’s covered payroll for its Police
Pension plan was $4,522,113. The Village’s contribution was 27.59% of covered payroll in FY2015.

The Fund’s investment policy in accordance with ILCS establishes the following target allocation across
asset classes:
Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 40% 4.0%
Equities 56% 10.0%

Cash Equivalents 4% 0.0%

The long-term expected rate of return on the Fund’s investments was determined using an asset
allocation study conducted by the Fund’s investment management consultant in August 2015 in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (net of pension plan investment expense
and inflation) were developed for each major assets class. These ranges were combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates or arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in the Fund’s target asset allocation as of April 30, 2015 are
listed in the table above.

All investments in the plan are stated at fair value and are recorded as of the trade date. Fair value is
based on quoted market prices at April 30 for debt securities, equity securities, and mutual funds.

For the year ended April 30, 2015, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan
investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 6.31 percent. The money-weighted rate of
return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing
amounts actually invested.

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of a bank’s failure,
the Police Pension Fund’s deposits may not be returned to them. The Police Pension Fund’s investment
policy requires all bank balances to be covered be federal depository insurance. In accordance with its
investment policy, the Police Pension Fund limits its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the
portfolio to provide liquidity for operating expenses and maximizing yields of funds needed for expected
current cash flows. The Police Pension Fund investment policy does not limit the maximum length of
maturities. The Police Pension Fund limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that an issuer of a debt
security will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in obligations of the
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United States Government that are explicitly or implicitly guaranteed by the United States Government.
Corporate bond investments must be rated as investment grade by one of the two largest rating services
at the time of the purchase and if subsequently downgraded, the corporate bond must be liquidated
from the portfolio within 90 days. U.S. agency securities are rated AA+ to AAA by Standard and Poor’s.
Municipal bonds are rated A3 or higher by Moody’s Investor Services. As a means of limiting its
exposure in the event of a failure of a counterparty, investment securities may be held at a
broker/dealer provided the securities are identified to a specific Pension Fund account and said account
is covered by insurance provided through the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or other
third-party private insurance. The market value of all securities held at a broker/dealer account shall not
exceed the insurance coverage provided for that account. Investment securities not covered by third-
party private insurance shall be held in a third-party custodian account, which shall be in the name of
and for the benefit of the Police Pension Fund or shall be held by the Police Pension Fund.

Total pension liability $ 46,676,357
Plan fiduciary net position $ 23,485,243
Village’s net pension liability $23,191,114
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability 50.31%

Reserves and Concentration of Investments

There are no assets legally reserved for purposes other than the payment of plan member benefits.
There are no long-term contracts for contributions. The plan held no investments (other than those
issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government) that represented 5% or more of net position available for
benefits.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0%, the same as the prior valuation.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions
will be made at the current contribution rate and that City contributions will be made at rates equal to
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those
assumptions, the Fund’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all project future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The
table below presents the pension liability of the City calculated using the discount rate of 7.0% as well as
what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower (6.0%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)
Net Pension Liability 30,018,915 23,191,114 17,596,103
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(c) Firefighters' Pension
Plan Description
Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Firefighters' Pension Plan which is a defined benefit single-
employer pension plan. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits as well as
the employee and employer contributions levels are mandated by Illinois Compiled Statutes (Chapter
40-Article 5/3) and may be amended only by the lllinois legislature. The Village accounts for the plan as
a pension trust fund. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.
The Firefighters' Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 11

Current employees

Vested 17
Nonvested 9
Total 37

The Firefighters’ Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Tier
1 employees (those hired prior to January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years
of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of the salary
attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day, whichever is
greater. The pension shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for each additional year of service over 20
years up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75% of such salary. Employees with at least 8 years but less than
20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly
pension of a firefighter who retired with 20 or more years of service after January 1, 1977 shall be
increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age
of at least 55 years, by 3% of the pension payable including increases previously granted.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or older with 10 or
more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to the
average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total salary of the firefighter during the 96 consecutive
months of service within the last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the
number of months of service in that period. Firefighters’ salary for pension purposes is capped at
$106,800, plus the lesser of one-half of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index or 3%
compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for each additional year of
service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of such salary. Employees with at least 10
years may retire at age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., %% for each month under 55). The
monthly benefit of a Tier 2 firefighter shall be increased annually at age 60 on January 1st after the
firefighter retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is later.
Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3% or
one-half of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the proceeding calendar year.
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Surviving spouses receive 100% of final salary for fatalities resulting from an act of duty, or otherwise
the greater of 54% of the final salary or the monthly retirement pension that the deceased firefighter
was receiving at the time of death. Surviving children receive 12% of the final salary. The maximum
family survivor benefit is 75% of final salary. Employees disabled in the line of duty receive 65% of final
salary.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their salary to the Firefighters' Pension Plan. If
an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee
contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the
remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary.
Effective January 1, 2011, the Village’s contributions must accumulate to the point where 90% of the
past service cost for the Firefighters’ Pension Plan is funded by the year 2040. Administrative expenses
are generally paid from plan assets.

Annual required contribution S 625,439
Interest on the Net Pension Asset (28,330)
Adjustment to the ARC 18,155
Annual pension cost 615,264
Contributions made 563,609
Decrease in net pension asset (51,655)
Net pension asset at May 1, 2014 404,709
Net pension asset at April 30, 2015 S 353,054

The net pension asset of $353,054 is also reported by the Village in the government-wide Statement of
Net Position at April 30, 2015.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Firefighters’ Pension Plan

For Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Pension of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) Contributed Asset
2013 S 530,347 99.1 % S 432,519
2014 548,959 94.9 404,709
2015 615,264 91.6 353,054

The Village’s Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) was $625,439 of which the Village contributed
$563,609 resulting in a contribution deficiency of $61,830. The Village’s covered payroll for its
Firefighters’ Pension plan was $2,323,000. The Village’s contribution was 24.26% of covered payroll in
FY2015.
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The Fund’s investment policy in accordance with ILCS establishes the following target allocation across
asset classes:

Long-Term Expected Real

Asset Class Target Rate of Return
Fixed Income 40% 4.0%
Equities 56% 10.0%
Cash Equivalents 4% 0.0%

The long-term expected rate of return on the Fund’s investments was determined using an asset
allocation study conducted by the Fund’s investment management consultant in August 2015 in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (net of pension plan investment expense
and inflation) were developed for each major assets class. These ranges were combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates or arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in the Fund’s target asset allocation as of April 30, 2015 are
listed in the table above.

All investments in the plan are stated at fair value and are recorded as of the trade date. Fair value is
based on quoted market prices at April 30 for debt securities, equity securities, and mutual funds.

For the year ended April 30, 2015, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan
investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 6.08 percent. The money-weighted rate of
return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing
amounts actually invested.

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of a bank’s failure,
the Firefighters’ Pension Fund’s deposits may not be returned to them. The Firefighters’ Pension Fund’s
investment policy requires all bank balances to be covered be federal depository insurance. In
accordance with its investment policy, the Firefighters’ Pension Fund limits its exposure to interest rate
risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for operating expenses and maximizing yields of
funds needed for expected current cash flows. The Firefighters’ Pension Fund investment policy does
not limit the maximum length of maturities. The Firefighters’ Pension Fund limits its exposure to credit
risk, the risk that an issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily
investing in obligations of the United States Government that are explicitly or implicitly guaranteed by
the United States Government. Corporate bond investments must be rated as investment grade by one
of the two largest rating services at the time of the purchase and if subsequently downgraded, the
corporate bond must be liquidated from the portfolio within 90 days. U.S. agency securities are rated
AA+ to AAA by Standard and Poor’s. Municipal bonds are rated A3 or higher by Moody’s Investor
Services. As a means of limiting its exposure in the event of a failure of a counterparty, investment
securities may be held at a broker/dealer provided the securities are identified to a specific Pension
Fund account and said account is covered by insurance provided through the Securities Investor
Protection Corporation (SIPC) or other third-party private insurance. The market value of all securities
held at a broker/dealer account shall not exceed the insurance coverage provided for that account.
Investment securities not covered by third-party private insurance shall be held in a third-party
custodian account, which shall be in the name of and for the benefit of the Firefighters’ Pension Fund or
shall be held by the Firefighters’ Pension Fund.
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Total pension liability $ 23,309,141
Plan fiduciary net position $17,318,662
Village’s net pension liability $ 5,990,479
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability 74.3%

Reserves and Concentration of Investments

There are no assets legally reserved for purposes other than the payment of plan member benefits.
There are no long-term contracts for contributions. The plan held no investments (other than those
issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government) that represented 5% or more of net position available for
benefits.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0%, the same as the prior valuation.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions
will be made at the current contribution rate and that City contributions will be made at rates equal to
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those
assumptions, the Fund’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all project future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The
table below presents the pension liability of the City calculated using the discount rate of 7.0% as well as
what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower (6.0%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)
Net Pension Liability 9,039,914 5,990,479 3,439,594

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

The financial statements for the Police and Firefighters’ Pension Trust Funds are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made a
formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Administrative costs for the Police and Firefighters’
Pension Plans are financed primarily through investment earnings. Investments are reported at fair
value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.
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The information presented in the notes and the required supplementary schedules was determined as
part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial
valuation is as follows:

lllinois Fire-
Municipal Police fighters'
Retirement Pension Pension
December 31, April 30, April 30,
Actuarial Valuation Date 2014 2015 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age
Normal Normal Normal
Asset Valuation Method Five-Year Five-Year Five-Year
Smoothed Smoothed Smoothed
Market Value Market Value Market Value
Amortization Method Level Level Level
Percentage of Percentage Percentage of
Projected of Projected Projected
Payroll — Open Payroll — Closed  Payroll — Closed
Basis Basis Basis
Significant Actuarial Assumptions
(a) Remaining Amortization
Period (Years) 29 26 26
(b) Rate of Return on Investment 7.50% 7.00% 7.00%
of Present and Future Assets comp